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STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA 
OFFICE OF PROCUREMENT MANAGEMENT 

523 EAST CAPITOL AVENUE 
PIERRE, SOUTH DAKOTA 57501-3182 

  

Interpreter Services 

Questions and Responses 
PROPOSALS ARE DUE NO LATER THAN November 16th, 2022 

  

  
RFP 22RFP8031 BUYER:  Office of the Secretariat POC: Kirsten Smart 

Kirsten.Smart@state.sd.us 
 

• CORRECTION: On page 15 of the RFP, Item 7.1 refers to Attachment B Language Chart.  This is 

incorrect. It should read Attachment D Language Chart. 

• The BIT Security and Vendor questions  document is available in Word format. 

 
DCS – Child Support  HSC – Human Services Center   
Economic Assistance   CPS - Child Protection 
Operations 

 
1 * Please confirm if the scope of this engagement is limited to Humans Services Center in Yankton, 

South Dakota. 
 
No. It can be anywhere within the state of SD. 
 

2 * Can you please affirm that bidding on selective services (e.g., translation only) is permitted? 
* Are partial bids accepted? 
* Will you accept a bid for American Sign Language services only? 
 
Yes, while we prefer one vendor, we will split the award as needed. 
 
 

3 * If multiple awards are made, how will the work be apportioned? 

 
Until the need to split is known, we can’t answer this question 
 
 

4 * Can you provide historical or expected volume of translation services utilized per year in 
wordcount, preferably with a per-language breakdown? 
* Could you please share past usage statistics broken down by service and language? 
 
Unable to provide a breakdown of languages as that data is not tracked.  However, the majority of 

written translation this year has been Spanish, German and Russian. Unable to provide and 

expected volume of documents to be translated as this varies.   

 

Unable to provide this information for HSC as we are a 24/7 hospital and can have admits and 

discharges at any time.  Most used languages within the last couple of years have been Karen, 

Spanish, Arabic, Sudanese, Hindi and Sign Language. 

 
Unable to provide but very limited use of written translation in Economic Assistance 
 
CPS utilizes at various stages with children and parent and currently translating written 
documents in the languages of Somalia, Sawhelia, Napali, Karen and Spanish. Additionally, we 
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also often work with families speaking Kunama, Dinkam Swahilli, and Creole, Arabic, Sudanese 
and Sign Language.  
Could this RFP translate written documents?  
 

5 * Can you provide historical or expected volume of over-the-phone interpretation services utilized 
per year in wordcount, preferably with a per-language breakdown? 
 
Unable to provide a word count as this data is not tracked.  

 
2019 2020 2021 

Spanish 1,586 calls 1,973 3,168 23,960 minutes 23,080 36,619 

Karen 211 293 423 4,521  3913 6,040 

Nepali 161 153 142 2,885 2402 2,561 

Somali 156 102 73 2,769 1440 1,097 

Swahili 121  75 70 2,102 1167 1,342 

Kunama 71  50 88 1,486 939 1,808 

Arabic 38 40 63 826 826 1,134 

Tigrinya 31 44 103 750 636 1,540 

Amharic 26 34 52 445 587 911 

Kirundi 19 12 18 460 194 399 

Russian 19 11 16 359 169 290 

2021 Burmese 43,422, Oromo 22,345,, Bosnian 15,279 

2022 data incomplete Russian moved to top 3, Dari moved into top 10 

 
 

6 * Can you provide historical or expected volume of video remote interpretation services utilized per 
year in wordcount, preferably with a per-language breakdown? 
* What percentage of the 2021 requests were on-site opposite to remote? 
* Does DSS expect most of the work provided to be on demand/remote in nature? 
 
HSC is unable to give specific statistics, but we had a variety of telephonic and live interpreters last 
year.  Best practice for our court restoration program is to have live interpreters.   
 
The Division of Economic Assistance has not utilized video interpretation in the past. Interpreter 

services have been primarily telephonic.  

 
CPS prefers in person or Zoom over telephone. 

 

 
7 * What is projected usage: 

o Video & Audio monthly minutes 
o Number of on-site interpreter sessions a month 
o Number of document translation request monthly 

Cannot be estimated as it varies from month to month. 

 
Would agree that this varies month to month for HSC. 
 
Economic Assistance average number of telephonic interpretations per month is 500. 

 
CPS can’t predict this. 

 

8 * Did the incumbent cover every single assignment successfully?  
* What challenges have you faced with similar scope of work from vendors you worked with? 
 Certification and timeliness. 
 
Availability of both the interpreter and specific language. 
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Availability of Interpreters, specifically Karen interpreters, excessive wait times, excessive 
background noises during calls, and frequent disconnections 
 
Availability and specific languages and wait times can be excessive   
 

9 * The RFP document lists “Sudanese” as one of the top languages. Does this refer to the 
Sudanese dialect of Arabic, or languages from the Sudanic family? If the latter, can you specify 
which individual languages you have need for? 
DCS cannot specify as it depends on the region of entry for the court order.  
 
HSC has had patients that speak a specific dialect of Sudanese, not just Arabic.  We have 
struggled in the past with deciphering which dialect. 
 
Economic Assistance has had customers that speak a specific dialect of Sudanese, not just 
Arabic 
 
CPS has clients with both dialects.  

 
10 * Do you have a list of the most frequently requested languages? 

* Could you publish a full list of languages other than the ones mentioned? 
The most common languages for DCS this year are German, Russian and Spanish. We could 
potentially receive cases needs translation for any language. 
 
Most common for HSC are Karen, Spanish, Sign Language, Arabic, Sudanese, Hindi.  We could 
also receive admissions from other languages as well. 
 
Economic Assistance has identified the most frequently requested languages as Spanish, Karen, 
Russian, Nepali, Swahili, Kunama, Tigrinya, Somali, Amharic, Arabic, Burmese, Bosnian, Dari. 
 
CPS Somalia, Sawhelia, Napali, Karen and Spanish. Additionally, we also often work with families 
speaking Kunama, Dinkam Swahilli, and Creole, Arabic, Sudanese and Sign Language. CPS 
would note that in the largest school district in Sioux Falls there is 77 languages spoken.  
 

11 *Is any preference given to bidders headquartered within the state of South Dakota? 
 
No 
 

12 * What is the name of the incumbent(s) and their contract number(s)? 
* Could you share the name of the company you have been using for telephonic, and video 
interpreting and also for translation? 
* Who is your current provider(s) of ASL onsite services? 

 
While we have various providers for the different divisions, there is no incumbent as such. This is 
a true search for a new vendor.  Will not provide a list of the current providers 
 

13 * In order for the incumbent not to have an advantage over the other bidders, could you please 
provide the incumbent rates for each of the services requested in this solicitation? 
* What are the current ASL onsite interpreting rates for your onsite provider(s)? 

 
We will not provide current costs 
 

14 * What are the evaluation criteria and how much weight is given to each? 
 
The evaluation criteria are listed in sections 6.1.1 through 6.1.8. We do not provide the weight for 
each. However, we can say that 6.1.1 is the most important descending to 6.1.8 which is the 
least.  
 

15 * What mathematical calculation will be used to evaluate pricing? 
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We do not disclose that 
 

16 * Can we ask for a debriefing in case we are not awarded? 
 
We are limited by state law to only make public the list of offerors, the final contract, and the 
winning proposal. This would include any BAFOs or changes to the proposal. 
 

17 * Can we submit our own rate structure/sheet? 
* Can we provide a supplemental cost proposal sheet to aid in explaining our pricing structure? 
* Section 3.7.1 requests a cost per page. Cost per word is the standard within the translation 
industry. Are we permitted to provide translation costs per word? 
* The Attachment D format does not align with our ASL onsite services – can we insert our rate 
schedule into the Attachment? 
 
Yes, you can submit your own rate sheet.  
 
However, please fill out Attachment D to the best of your ability. 
 

18 * If OPI: Which phone line will be served by the OPI interpreters? If there are multiple lines, please 
indicate just one for reference 
 
 
 

19 * How many ASL interpreting hours did you use last year? 
 
Do not have the stats for HSC as this time. 
 
Economic Assistance does not have this data. 
 
CPS does not have this data.  
 

20 * If an on-site ASL interpreter is not available, are you amenable to a remote ASL Interpreter? 
* What % of the ASL assignments are virtual? 
 
HSC would be open to a remote ASL interpreter. 

 
Economic Assistance would accept a remote interpreter for ASL. 

 
CPS prefers ASL in person. 

 
21 * Do you currently use Video Remote Interpreting (VRI) for ASL? 

*If so, who is your current VRI provider and what is the rate? 
 
Economic Assistance has no video remote interpreting today 
 
CPS has not used video remote for ASL. 
 

22 * What percentage of your ASL interpreting assignments are for last minute needs (less than 2 full 
business days’ notice)? 
The majority of assignments. 
 
HSC can receive admissions and discharges 24/7.  At times we do not have advance notice on 
these admissions/discharges.  At those times we would need a last-minute interpreter.  For 
treatment meetings/groups, these can be scheduled in advance. 

 
The Division of Economic Assistance would look to utilize video interpretation to immediately 

begin communicating with our customer whenever possible. 
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CPS at many times would not have advanced notice.  

 
23 *What is the average length of an ASL interpreting assignment? 

This cannot be quantified as it depends on the reason for the translation. If verbal translation, it 
could be 5 minutes or it could be hours. Written translation could be 1 page to 50 pages as it 
depends on the size of the court order, affidavits and/or any other required documentation. 
 
Not able to give this information as our setting is so fluid. 
 
Economic Assistance has no data related to this. 
 
CPS needs for families varies for times frames.  
 

24 * Section 7.1 requires the use of Attachment B, but it is not included in the bid package – is this 
supposed to be Attachment D? 
 

 
Yes. See Correction note at the start 
 

25 *Does DSS pay for mileage/travel expenses for onsite engagements?  
*Does DSS cover parking costs if applicable? 
Please indicate in your proposal if you expect DSS to cover onsite expenses. Typically, 
reimbursement is at the State rates. In November of 2022 they are $75/night for loding; $0.51 per 
mile for travel and upto $40 per day for food. Details can be found here - 
https://sdlegislature.gov/api/Rules/Rule/05:01:02:14.html 
 
Please provide an estimated budget for flights per onsite engagements.  
 
Alternatively, provide a flat rate per day for onsite engagements. 
 
As for parking this would be on a case by case basis as in most locations parking is free 
 
 

26 * Does DSS have a cancellation policy in place for on-site/prescheduled remote appointments? If 
not, can we write in our own? 
DCS does not have a cancellation policy. If a translator is needed for a court action, we have no 
control over the court continuing the hearing to a later date or time, nor will the court schedule 
hearings to accommodate any other schedule.  
 
HSC does not currently have a cancellation policy. 

 
Economic Assistance has no cancellation policy. 
 
CPS does not have a cancellation policy.   
 

27 * Are there any state specific interpreter/translator certification requirements for this bid? 
 
No. In your proposal include the types of certifications that your staff tend to have. For example, 
“75% of our staff is certified by with the American Translators Association.” 
 

28 * Are interpreters required to have legal certifications? 
Yes, for written translation of documents. 
 
Yes, for legal document translation. 

 
Yes, for legal document translation 

https://sdlegislature.gov/api/Rules/Rule/05:01:02:14.html
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29 * How much time in advance are on-site requests received prior to scheduled start time on 

average? 
*Industry standard for Onsite requests is a 2 hour minimum, will that be honored? 
 
If someone is picked up on a bench warrant, the court can schedule a hearing immediately, so 
there may not be a scheduled time. 

 
This would depend on the situation at HSC.  If an admit comes in that we cannot communicate 
with, and the person is very sick, we would need interpreter services asap.  Majority of the time I 
would think we could use a virtual interpreter link for these circumstances. 

 
The Division of Economic Assistance would look to utilize telephonic or video interpretation rather 

than in-person, whenever possible to immediately begin communicating with our customer. 

 
CPS needs can vary for families and the need can be urgent or an emergency.   

 
30 3.2.4 Scheduled video call; we do not offer preschedule video calls as we staff the languages we 

offer Video FOR deeply.   Have you had trouble with obtaining video languages from you current 
supplier or is there another reason you are requesting the ability to schedule by the minute Video 
Interpretation calls? 
  
Our reason for wanting to schedule meetings is simply so that we can know an interpreter will be 
available when needed. 
 
If you can document that we will always be able to get an interpreter without scheduling we will 
accept that. 
 

31 .* Would you accept as well an alternate modality of prescheduled Video calls for longer meetings 
that is NOT by the minute? 

  
Yes, please provide information on your alternative. 

 
 

32 * Should we include information on our various Virtual Integrations such as for Zoom and if so 

which platform(s) do you use primarily? 

 
Yes, please do. 

 
33 * Is company required to be on State’s approved vendor list? 

 
No 
 

 
 


